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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$243.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$669.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. It was mainly attributable to the commission
income from placing of approximately HK$137.9 million. The net
loss before tax for the Year was approximately HK$369.5 million
as compared to the net profit before income tax of approximately
HK$35.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
significant decrease in revenue and turnaround from profit to
loss for the year was mainly attributable to (i) the recognition of
unrealised fair value loss on equity and fund investments at fair
value through profit or loss and (ii) credit loss allowances on other
financial assets.

m N AT

The net loss after income tax for the Year was approximately
HK$371.3 million as compared to the net profit after income tax of
approximately HK$27.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year was approximately HK2.32 cents (31 December 2020:
basis earnings of approximately HK0.18 cents).

Economy Review

In 2021, COVID-19 cases fell across much of the world signals a
new dawn in the fight of the disease. Vaccines are proving effective
and most of the world have taken the stringent anti-epidemic
measures including travel bans, social distancing, city and regional
lockdowns in order to keep people apart and suppress the virus.
The global economy gradually recovered. However, the Omicron
variant is sweeping across the global. Omicron is still highly
contagious and can infect people even if they are fully vaccinated.

For 2021 as a whole, Hong Kong’s economy expanded by 6.4%
and the unemployment rate fell to approximately 3.9% in the fourth
quarter. On a year-on-year basis, total exports of goods recorded
accelerated growth in the fourth quarter due to the further revival of
import demand in many major markets, especially China. However,
exports of services plunged further as inbound tourism remained
at standstill. Exports and imports trade were adversely affected
by the weaker performance of the global economy and various
external factors. Under the threat of COVID-19 and austere labour
market conditions, domestic demand also decreased and private
consumption expenditure stayed subdued, reflecting pessimistic
local economic and consumer sentiment.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

In line with real economy, the local stock market dropped
significant as investor sentiment getting worse. In the first half year,
the Hang Seng Index opened at 27,087 points and closed at 28,828
points at the end the first half. In the second half year, Hang Seng
Index start to drop by 5,430 points to 23,398 points at the end of
2021. The rising unemployment rate in city is putting pressure on
local housing price. Hong Kong's property market remains resilient,
but uncertainty persists.

In the first half of the year, China Huarong Asset Management
Company failed to release its 2020 financial results, prompting
the selloff of its bonds and those of its subsidiaries as investors
worried about the group’s financial health and reports of a potential
restructuring. The Huarong-related credit risks hit investment-
grade Chinese-funded dollar bonds. In the second half of the year,
Chinese property giant China Evergrande Group (“Evergrande”)
failed to meet interest payments to international investors. The crisis
has spooked investors who fear contagion across China’s property
sectors. The bond offering has a slow pace of growth during the
year, hurt by credit risk, COVID-19 outbreaks and a weakening
property and financial sector. According to Bloomberg, the total
issuance volume of US dollar bonds, in the primary market for
the Year was approximately US$3,053.5 billion, representing a
decrease of approximately 19.3% compared to that of last year.

Business Review

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWEF”).
CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$11.2 million (31 December 2020:
HK$9.2 million) and the interest income from the securities margin
financing was approximately HK$12.7 million (31 December
2020: HK$44.3 million). The Group will maintain its prudent credit
policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve a
sustainable business environment.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEER BT kT

Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In recognition of the robust potential in the China’s US dollar
bonds market, the Group have established a foothold and teamed
up to participate as a major player in this growing market in 2017.
The market is principally classified into, by industry four business
segments, namely industrial, property development, financial and
urban construction investment (“Chengtou”).

During the Year, the Group has so far participated in 52 debt
issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner,
joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size
of approximately US$7.7 billion as at 31 December 2021. The
debts are issued through either private or public offerings with
coupon rates ranging from 1.75% to 14% per annum. According
to the information published on Bloomberg 2021, CWSI ranked
as the 52th manager in the issuance of offshore China bonds for
the Year based on the issuance volume credited to each involved
party. During the Year, the provision of debt capital market services
has recorded a commission income from placing of approximately
HK$137.9 million. The Group will continue to strengthen our
services in the coming period and broaden our service range with
an aim to provide one stop service to our customers.

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group engages in the provision of investment
management services on diversified and comprehensive investment
products including private funds and discretionary accounts to
individual, corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our
investment fund, namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“CWIF”), mainly focus on the China’s bond market as it is the
second largest bond market in the world and offers attractive yield
opportunities. It is expected that the market will continue to grow
and transform with the global economy. The Group believes it will
become more capital market oriented and open to foreign investors.
Besides, CWAM also served as an investment advisor for clients
providing advice on equity fund, fixed income funds and other
investment products.

6 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FEZE@ZERER A 7

BRERTIHEL

BRAEBEBNELET NERBTERSFEH
B -PEESFA/RNBAEAMKLZBERAR]
AETEFIAERIBETHEIR(FHFRS) R
F4E (UBLFREBR)IRE R 2% -

ERTEXTEFTHENREANEN R-2F—+
FAKEC SRR THIERNOTS YHEHE
BHRASETEL2EE -ZAMBTIERTED
AUEEBRE NIX FHEER SRR
WIERRE ([HER]) -

REAEE REBESUABMESRBAA BE
REEEBEA BEEALCHASEEREFHZ
W5 IEERET R E_—F+=-_A=+—H
MBBTHRBORI7TBEETL -ZSEKHEB
AR RHBEERT BEEXNTEFI175%E
14% - IRIBEZBENR S _—FHENER
BN BT ASL2EINBTE PEFHER
NEEERTHFPEBEEFNETEAPRMIE
A+ -RAFE REEHEEAT SRS
BEEME WA L137,900,00078 TT ° 7N &= E 7
T—HRE S EENERS RIEARGEE §E
AR IR -

EEERE

BREBEBNELET NERBTEEERE
ERAR([MEEEEE) 2B E-hEE
EEBRNBEBAMALZERAR  AIEITE
FRBAEHMBATEAR (REFRHBER) LS
M (RHEEEBR)IRE BB XK -

RAFE AEERBAA CEREBERFIR
HETHZ2EREER (BRELEESREH#
EAERPINKREETERKE - BRI HPNKE
% (Bl Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
([CWIF]) ) ZEZZERNFBRESEMS JIEF
BELEMBAMRE _KEETS T wESH
BOofRoEmk - HEMSBEEERKEESDIX
EEER c REBBEMSBEBREATSEE -
WHBRTEIMIEE - WINFEBEEERTD
IREBEHE ARPHAREEAS BETkasES
MEMISEERREHER -



Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has 12 segregated
portfolios as at 31 December 2021. The investment objectives
of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through capital
appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high degree of
security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios now mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The investment manager will
seek to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities arise.

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2021, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$787.1 million (31 December 2020:
US$714.1 million). The management and performance fee income
is approximately HK$38.9 million during the Year.

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 27,087 points and
closed at 23,397 points. Despite the local stock market rebounded,
the Group recorded unrealised losses on equity and fund
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$107.6 million and realised losses on disposal of equity and
fund investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$18.5 million.

During the Year, the Group has a unrealised fair value losses on
debts investment at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$1.2 million and gains on disposal of debt investments at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$5.6 million, the
interest income from debt investments amounted to approximately
HK$11.0 million.

Money lending business

During the Year, the interest income from the money lending
business was approximately HK$37.9 million. The net balance of
loan book recorded a decrease of approximately HK$47.3 million
to approximately HK$469.8 million as compared to approximately
HK$517.1 million as at 31 December 2020. The money lending
business charged annual interest rates at a range from 5% to 7%
(31 December 2020: range from 5% to 12%). The Group will
continue to maintain its prudent credit policy and risk management
approach with a view to achieve a sound financial management
and sustainable business environment.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Prospects

In 2022, major economies including the United States, China and
countries in the euro zone are expected to slow down this year. A
resurgence in COVID-19 infections, due to the highly contagious
omicron variant, will likely disrupt economic activity in the near
term and could worsen growth projections if it persists. Reduced
cross border travel remains the primary concern for businesses.
Year 2021 is the year of “Recovery” with economy growth rate and
employment rate improved. We expect that, in 2022, the depth
and speed of recovery remains uncertain as Hong Kong is affected
by the external environment and the local epidemic situation can
remains.

The offshore bond market was severely hit by the elevated concerns
on the deteriorating credit crisis caused by Evergrande and a series
of defaults and credit events of Chinese property developers,
particularly in the second half of 2021. Investors turned risk-averse
as they pulled out from the offshore bond market, especially the
high yield bonds issued by Chinese property developers. As a result,
bond prices dropped significantly with non-investment grade and/or
high-yield property developers suffering the most. China’s offshore
bond market is expected to continue seeing defaults — especially in
the stressed property sector.

Besides, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to the
expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical tension
which continue to cloud the global economic recovery. Also the
Group will evaluate the economic impact of a weaker yuan as
China may use it as the countermeasure to US tariffs.

In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent investment
strategy in developing its existing and new businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$243.8 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$669.9 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$37.9 million, commission income from placing
of approximately HK$137.9 million, commission income from
securities and futures dealing of approximately HK$11.2 million,
interest income from securities margin financing of approximately
HK$12.7 million and management fee and performance fee income
from asset management business of approximately HK$38.9 million.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group recorded other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$204.5 million for the Year (31 December 2020: other
comprehensive loss of HK$40.2 million). It was mainly attributable
to an increase in fair value of approximately HK$201.8 million
on equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (31 December 2020: a decrease in fair value of HK$46.3
million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net asset value
was approximately HK$1,122.4 million (31 December 2020:
HK$1,277.3 million).

Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 8.2% and 30.26%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. As far as the Directors
are aware, none of Directors, their associates or any shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
HK$116.4 million (31 December 2020: HK$140.4 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any bank
overdrafts (31 December 2020 HK$86.4 million), notes payable
of HK$50 million (31 December 2020: HK$86.6 million),
interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately HK$71.7 million
(31 December 2020: HK$102.7 million) and interest-bearing other
borrowings of approximately HK$268.1 million (31 December
2020: HK$365.0 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.32 times (31 December 2020: 1.51 times) based
on current assets of approximately HK$924.6 million (31 December
2020: HK$1,788.7 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$699.3 million (31 December 2020: HK$1,187.2 million).
No capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 not
provided for in the Group’s financial statements (31 December
2020: HK$3.6 million). The Group also had no other contingent
liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).
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Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 34.7% (31 December 2020: 50.2%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$389.8 million includes bank and other borrowings, bank
overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group’s revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Therefore, the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are
insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintained a portfolio of
investments including equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity and fund investments at fair value
through profit or loss and debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss with total carrying amount of approximately HK$761.9
million. The Directors consider that equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments with a market value that account
for more than 5% of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date as
significant investments. The details of the equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments which accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2021 is set out
below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Percentage of Percentage
shareholding of the Fair value Realised
in investments  investments to Fair value of ~ Carrying value gains/(losses) of  gain/(losses)
held by the  total assets of investments  of investments investments  for the period
Group as at  the Group as at as at as at as at ended
Stock 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Code Name of the investees 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
R-BZ-% 8E
RZB=-F +=A —B=--F
+=A =t-82 R-B--% +=A
=+-8 REM R-B--F RIF--F +=A =t+-H
KRB r5E +=A +=A =t+-B2 IRz
REzkE  AEAEZ =+-H =t-8 KRELYHE [ 3
RoRSE  REHZER BAL ARt REZAVE REZREE W/ (BR) Ws/ (F8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TAT TET TET
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
BREMEERSRATEINRRARE
412 China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited 2.34% 24.69% 451,394 215,710 235,684 3,986
412 TRLURSEERERERAA
Others N/A 2.29% 41,864 96,041 (54,177) (123,935)
it NER
Total 493,258 311,751 181,507 (119,949)
st
Equity and fund investments at fair value through profit or loss*
FRRREATEIIEZRARESRE"
Total N/A 5.23% 95,558 203,190 (107,632) (1,612)
@5t TER
Debt investments at fair value through profit or loss *
FRRREATEIIRZERRE
Total N/A 9.46% 173,035 174,254 (1,219 325
@t TER
Grand total 761,851 689,195 72,656 (121,236)
BEAH
¢ None of the equity and fund investments account for more than 5% RIBEAHFERAREEREMG A ELZ B

of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date.

& None of the debt investments account for more than 5% of the
Group’s net assets at the reporting date.

EEJFIES% A _E o

RIRE AR EFRE G AL B EEFE%
K-
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Performance and prospects of the investees

1.

12

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (“China
Shandong Hi-Speed”)

China Shandong Hi-Speed together with its subsidiaries (the
“China Shandong Hi-Speed Group”) are principally engaged
in the trading business of financial leasing, leasing assets as
well as other related leasing properties, and provision of spot
trading platform and marketing and consulting services related
to the above businesses.

As mentioned in its interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, the China Shandong Hi-Speed Group
recorded a total revenue and other income of approximately
HK$553.9 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021.
The China Shandong Hi-Speed Group has reported a profit
of approximately HK$115.4 million attributable to owners of
China Shandong Hi-Speed. The basic and diluted earnings
per share were both HK$0.48 cents. As at 30 June 2021,
the unaudited consolidated net asset of the China Shandong
Hi-Speed Group was approximately HK$9,671.3 million.
China Shandong Hi-Speed Group has not declared an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

China Shandong Hi-Speed Group actively developed in line
with the China’s industrial policies, explored different high-
quality investment opportunities in the countries along the
“Belt and Road” Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. As disclosed in its interim report, it
has reached a strategic cooperation agreement with Shandong
Hi-Speed Hubei Development Co., Ltd. The two parties also
made use of their respective advantages and resources to
achieve mutual benefit and common development, carried
out cooperation based on market-oriented operation methods.

The Company has confidence that China Shandong Hi-Speed
Group can further improve its asset-liability structure and
the stability of profitability. The management of the Group
considers the investment in China Shandong Hi-Speed is for
long term purpose. However, the Group would not rule out
the possibility of realising the investments from time to time
where to do so is to be in the best interests of the Group or
where the terms on which such realisation to be particularly
favorable to the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held 564,242,000 shares
of China Shandong Hi-Speed. China Shandong Hi-Speed
closed at HK$0.8.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Fortune China Bond SP I
Fortune China Bond SP Il now mainly invests in the US dollar
denominated bonds including the Chengtou Bond and fixed
income securities issued by Chinese institutions. The coupon
rate of the bond and fixed income securities range from 0% to
7.8% per annum with maturity period two years.

The investment objectives of Fortune China Bond SP Il are to
achieve a high rate of return through capital appreciation and
seek fixed income returns with a high degree of security. The
investment manager seek to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money
market funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and
derivatives.

In recent years, the Chinese government has done a series
of fruitful work in simplifying the overseas debt issuance
approval process and procedures. It has further implemented
measures in the area of bond connection, capital use, and
financing leverage. The Chinese government maintains a
relatively loose regulatory policy for China’s bond market and
encourages Chinese companies to raise funds overseas. This
helps to accelerate the internationalization of Reminbi and
Chinese enterprises.

Since China’s bond vyield is lower than that of last year, the
return for investors is not attractive. Although the Chengtou
Bonds is limited by its lower credit rating, it has local
government’s credit and pays a higher yield. It is expected
that the demand and issuance of the Chengtou Bonds will rise
in the future.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held 7,363.929 shares
of Fortune China Bond SP Il representing 55.45% of shares of
Fortune China Bond SP 11.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged certain listed equity
investments of approximately HK$40.4 million (31 December 2020:
HK$174.2 million) to secure the other borrowings.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 105 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.

Er#&d:&EEEH—JLNHH& Tﬁ
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Report of the Directors
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and equity
investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2021, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 204.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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Results

Revenue

LON

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

BREGHA (BR) /&5
AR

(Loss)/profit for the year/period ARABEARGREER/
attributable to owners of 5 (B8) /8
the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets EERE

Total liabilities Elk

Net assets BEFE

2021
“E--F
HK$'000
TER
243,841
(369,459)
(1,807)

(371,266)

2021
“BE--F
HK$'000
TiEn
1,828,312
705,903

1,122,409

Report of the Directors
EEEWE

2

For the period

from

1 April to

Year ended 31 December 31 December

NA-HZE

+=A

e

BE+-A=1+-HILEE B

2020 2019 2018 2017

“E-Bf ZEB-N§f ZE-NF CZB-+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR TER TER

669,850 947,744 174,454 228,055

35,385 248,519 (58,875) 373,375

(7,627) (40,132) (8,186) (4,520)

27,758 208,387 (67,061) 368,855
EEHAE

As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H

2020 2019 2018 2017

“B-EF  ZEB-RFE ZB-N\F ZEBE-tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

2,552,480 2,427,162 2,890,899 4,228,648

1,275,206 1,211,815 1,042,077 1,504,744

1,277,274 1,215,347 1,848,822 2,723,904
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Report of the Directors
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Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,764,680,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 30.26% of the Group’s total revenue, of
which 8.2% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Mr. Xu Ke (resigned on 28 December 2021)

Ms. Chen Jingxian (appointed on 21 February 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun (appointed on 28 December 2021)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin (resigned on 16 November 2021)
Ms. Song Caini (appointed on 21 February 2022)
Mr. Chen Hongjin (appointed on 21 February 2022)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr Yu
Qingrui, Mr Kwok Chi Kwong and Mr Liu Hongwei shall retire at
the 2022 annual general meeting (the “2022 AGM”) and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 62 to 64 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Wang Jun,
Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin has a service
contract with the Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu Hongwei
has been appointed for a fixed term of one year.
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All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors” Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 38 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
37 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,596,965,046 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme of the
Company was 1,596,965,046 shares, representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company may
refresh the scheme mandate limit with its shareholders” approval
provided that each such refreshment may not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders” approval.
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the
Company during the year is set out as follows:

RAFEER  ARABZ BRI T

N

Number of share Number of share Number of share Number of share Exercise price of
Name or category options outstanding at options granted  options lapsed during  options outstandingat  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
of participant 1 January 2021 during the Year® the Year 31 December 2021 share options share options” (HK$ per share)
R-B=-%
R=B=-% tZA=t-H
-B-BHAfTE REFERLN REFEXRH HATEZ BRETRE
SRENLIEG ZBREYE BREHE® BRE%E BREHE RUBRERH BRETRARE (BRER)
Director
iz
Chen Xiaodong 126,840,000 - (126,840,000) - 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
R “Z-hFRAZR “E-hERAZHE
“S--F¥RAZH
- 159,600,000 - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“Z--51ATAH “E--FRARAZE
—Z-=41AMA
126,840,000 159,600,000 (126,840,000) 159,600,000
Yu Qingrui 126,840,000 S (126,840,000) - 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
REH “E-AFRAZH “E-NFEAZRE
—2--%7A-A
- 159,600,000 - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“Z--%1A%R “E-fIARAE
“B-Z#TARA
126,840,000 159,600,000 (126,840,000) 159,600,000
Lam Hay Yin 146,800,000 - (146,800,000) - 04/06/2019 04/06/2019 - 03/06/2021 0.046
(resigned on “E-AERARA “E-NEAANRE
16 November 2021) I N
HE
(R=F=-%
T-A+RBEHE)
- 159,600,000 (159,600,000) - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“B--%1ATA “E--FIARAZE
=51 AMA
146,800,000 159,600,000 (306,400,000) -
Wu Ming 87,000,000 = (87,000,000) - 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
] “B-NFRAZR “E-hERAZHE
“E--FRACH
> 15,890,000 - 15,890,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“2--%1A1ER
87,000,000 15,890,000 (87,000,000) 15,890,000
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Number of share Number of share Number of share Number of share Exercise price of
Name or category options outstanding at options granted  options lapsed during  options outstandingat  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
of participant 1 January 2021 during the Year® the Year 31 December 2021 share options share options” (HK$ per share)
RB=-%
R-B=-%F tZA=t-H
—B-AMKTHE REFERILN REFEXUN MARTEZ BREGEE
SREN LR ZBREHE BREHE® BREHE BREHE RUBRERA BRETEARE (BRER)
Other employee
AthER
In aggregate 441,462,000 - (441,462,000 - 20/0612019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
Eh) “E-NFRAZTA ZE-NERAZTRE
—Z--#xAthA
- 159,600,000 - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“Z--%1A1nR
441,462,000 159,600,000 (441,462,000 159,600,000
Service providers
R EE
In aggregate 413,924,000 - (413,924,000 - 03/052019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
Eh “E-NFEAZ=R “E-NERAZHE
—Z2--%7AZA
147,154,000 - (147,154,000) - 20/06/2019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
“E-nERAZTA ZE-NERAZTHE
ZEZ-F/ATAA
= 623,000,000 - 623,000,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
“Z--FRARA “E--FRARHEE
“E-ZFRAMA
561,078,000 623,000,000 (561,078,000) 623,000,000
Consultants
;]
In aggregate - 319,200,000 - 319,200,000  05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172
At “¥--fnAaA “F--FRARRE
“2-Z#TARA
Total 1,490,020,000 1,596,490,000 (1,649,620,000) 1,436,890,000
&zt
Notes: B 5%
(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant (1) BREZGBHARYBNEESITHEERB AL -

until the commencement of the exercise period.

REE-_Z-_—FRARBRLEREARNAAR
& {5 W 7 /B 40.017 4 7T

(2) The closing price of the Company’s Shares immediately before the (2
date of grant of share options on 5 May 2021 was HK$0.017.

BEEREREE _T_—F+_A=1+—HILEE
BTG

(3) No share options have been exercised/cancelled during the year  (3)
ended 31 December 2021.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

i%ﬁ’\\‘lﬁ’&ﬂﬂﬁﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁZ%

M-ZE-—F+=-A=1+—H ARARAEENK
2RI (F 3 2B % 5 8 5 e
(T8 % RIS D)) & XV 3) b A ABER
RRARREES R E GO E3526ATUAERF
ERM BN RRE LT RTAEELTE
52 HmEeTa (LT ANEARR
RSB 2 T

1 RELXFEBRZHR

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary shares issued share

Name of director Capacity interested capital

BEESEN (LHEAQFSBRT

EEpA =47 HERHYE RAB D>

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 108,886,246 0.68%
PREEER ERBERA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 5,610 0.00%
REH BERBEAA

E The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares e BOLERAERNEBEREE RURA

interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2021.
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

Report of the Directors
EXgWmE

2 RAELXFEBEROZHFRE —BUEEHXL
TRATETAR

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Name of director Capacity granted capital
FriRtBRE B BR 404
Fir% B A6 BE RATE BT

EEnR 5% R E BRAET D>

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 159,600,000 1.00%

PREE R EREAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 159,600,000 1.00%

RE & EmlEA A

Wu Ming Beneficial owner 15,890,000 0.10%

R4 EREAA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BRAARARMREEBEREZFBEHIN AR
& [RERHERTE] —&fe

& B EENEBERME R BRIAE
AR ZEZ—F+ZA=+—HB#T
D EE -

BREXHEEEN RZE-_—F+_A=+—
B ARRIZEERETETHRABMERARRF
ST AAEEEAE (EERESRAEEMEXVER)
ZBG HERDRESTRETABREESRR
HEEMEXVEE7RESHEBAEME KA R M
BTz ERSAR (BIERIEES L EE K
CHERTEWEANEERBE ZRERAR)
o BB ARR RIREE S5 K HE K E35216 M
FEZEEMPBBEEZETAREAMNS A
UNCIDSE o At Ay
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Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

EERERODIES ZER

B bt [EERARA R RABBRD 2=

K [EERIRER & BT AR B HRERM 38R
BREGFIRBEEMMREEN RAFEAR
BEATMEFIAREZTAIBEBIRRFFL
REAE BB ALRRR RO HESFMEAN S
Z PR T F BT E AT R F R o

AREHEAEFNE R BWET L EM R B
FEFANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

FERRRAAFRE RAEBERD
Z e

R-B-—F+=A=+—R BEAATRE
% RGN E336HMEFE 2 B RMATH
RBARAE - FIIEHFRARDF 2R AR
B AR (7 70 B 5% A b2 s

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REAREBRZHR
Percentage* of
Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity Note interested capital
BEREEZ MWBERRSHT
TERRER 514 B EE ZERHE RAE 7+
Xu Ke Beneficial owner 1,125,701,571 7.05%
(Gl BERERA
Interests held by a controlled (1) 2,000,000,000 12.52%
corporation
BBRIEFRRRE 2R
3,125,701,571 19.57%
Dragon Regal Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (M 2,000,000,000 12.52%
EREEFRAF BERBERA
Oshidori International Holdings Beneficial owner (2) 1,424,915,030 8.92%

Limited
BEEERAER QA
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Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holdings Limited (“Dragon
Regal”) which was controlled by Xu Ke. Accordingly, Xu Ke was
deemed to be interested in these 2,000,000,000 shares held by
Dragon Regal under Part XV of the SFO.

(2)  Oshidori International Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested
in 1,424,915,030 shares through its controlled entities/corporations,
Enerchina Investments Limited, Uptown WW Capital Group Limited,
Uptown WW Holdings Limited and Kenson Investment Limited, under
Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.
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B & :

) ZERNBEREEERAFSA MERATK

T o B BRI IRIEE 5 R EIEHIE XV 36
W8 B F BE B #5 A #92,000,000,0008% 3% 17
B

) *ETEM%&HKWHEJ%XV*B BEEERAR
ARIWRBBEREZIEELR AE (Enerchina
Investments Limited * Uptown WW Capital Group
Limited * Uptown WW Holdings Limited
Kenson Investment Limited) 2 1,424,915,030/% i
AR

* BOLEREERENEBREABKUARFR
TR -F+-A=+—HEBTRHHEE -

b EaiprETEEN R —F+ A =+—
B BARFAZES(EEZEREXEER
KRR MD RABBER G 2 S ] — &) o ER
HEMATRARRIBIEES LS EH$336
KETHEFZELMALER AR F R
AR HEEERSAR -

E%Z““h&;
REARBABZAMENREEERM - A
ﬁ%ﬂ%%Z%&E%ﬂﬁE%v$@ﬂ—Eﬁ
BRADBEBRE-

EENERBRBRERP ER
RAFERHEAREBE HETRAFEE
MESEERENREE IR EEARAEEEBKE
SR F kRN R F T AR -

38 <1 3% B 2 5B
RESFHM NAFERREAGEAE £E
BERBASAETHELBREBEEAY
2 REPIRRH -
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Auditors

Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2019 as Ernst & Young and the Company
could not reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the
annual audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The
Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee, has
resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 15 November 2019 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young.

Moore will hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. Moore will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Moore as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the
Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Re

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.

ne Eort
iE;E B ¥

& EEARR
EZeXRARINERERVARARERRE
ZEZRMN BARRBANHTRERIDAARA
AFERZERERATMR -

HWREBEEE KRR —EET LR
+mp e EERTFE ([T AT FBRT
AU - AAFZ EEREEARIEEART
A -

EEg
EERET SBREM
EFRARADALBOERS AREH  AA

DA R R R B EBUR - RS RETEl - 5l AE
HABRRAEBEZER MAESERERZE
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A REEE EEERELEY BREER
MEE BT - BAK 5 (5525 R A 6 R
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EREFALEHEARMEEBER UAERE
REAMEREARASRERAENERRES
HR® ARRETESSRFARMBEML
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Ms. Chen Jingxian (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Wang Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Jingxian

Mr. Wang Jun

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hongwei

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Liu Hongwei

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Mr. Wang Jun respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning and leadership of the Board, whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally. The respective
responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established and set out in
writing. The separation of roles would ensure a balance of power
and authority, and strengthen the governance function and business
development of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Yu Qingrui,
Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin, have not been appointed for
a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws. The Company has also issued a letter
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company for a term of 1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yu
Qingrui, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and Mr. Liu Hongwei shall retire
at the 2022 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2022 AGM. The Board recommended the re-election
of the above retiring directors at the 2022 AGM.
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company (i) has
organized briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its
directors on corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules
amendments and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory
updates to all the directors for their reference and studying.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry
has been made of all the Company’s directors and all have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2021 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by
the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HELE ERRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exg ENRZET FMWEEE REZES BR®
Name of Director EEnE =f = = = BEXRE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BREER 4 6/6 - - 2/2 11
Mr. Xu Ke (note 1) R L (HEE) 3/6 - - - 0/1
Mr. Wang Jun (note 2) TERE (H2) - - = = -
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE 6/6 - - - 0/1
Ms. Lam Hay Yin (note 3)  #R#gE#Z+ (Hi=E3) 5/5 - mn - 1
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BENRE 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Wu Ming ;Q%SEE 6/6 2/2 - - 0/1
Mr. Liu Hongwei ANERERAE 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1

Notes: Bt 5

1.

Mr. Xu Ke resigned as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 28 November 2021. During the period from 1 January
2021 up to his resignation date, 6 Board Meetings and 1 Annual
General Meeting were held.

Mr. Wang Jun was appointed as the chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company on 28 December 2021. During the
period from his appointment date up to 31 December 2021, no Board
Meeting or Annual General Meeting was held.

Ms. Lam Hay Yin resigned as an executive director and a member
of Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from
16 November 2021. During the period from 1 January 2021 up to
her resignation date, 5 Board Meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee
Meeting and 1 Annual General Meeting were held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.

IS -
_LiﬁiﬂfTi%?ﬁiﬂ

f%ﬂf‘ifﬁ’\\_??:—iﬂ— AZ+N\BEER
REWMTEE - R-_T-—F— A HEEHH
E*‘“ B HBIToOREZSEHMRABRBEFEX

&
& o
=

TEERER T _—F+_A-+N\BEZE
REARBITRARFATEE REEZEER
ES‘:; T —F+A=+—H UEETES
E = u%jZHX%@ﬁEji@O

MEFRETRN T -—F+— A+ BEIARN
RARTEERFWNEZEEKE RS =_—F
—A—REEZHEFRTEH" %%TTS/Aé?AA
BT EEEEERIARERAFAE

REFEFENESS T FEMRE R LA RS
RWEHITESHE 2D -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3 31



Corporate Governance Report
AN A SR A
TXRERME

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the six executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Ms. Chen
Jingxian, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr.
Chen Hongjin. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
also acts as the Chairman of this committee. The Executive
Committee operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board to increase the efficiency for business
decision making. It monitors the execution of the Company’s
strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group
and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the
management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu
Hongwei, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended
31 December 2020 and for the six months ended 30 June
2021, the financial reporting, the related accounting
principles, practices and compliance procedures of the
Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises of two members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman) and Mr. Liu Hongwei, all
of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate
goals and objectives; and (iii) establish a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, the remuneration
of which will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and
conditions.

_LI_/‘\—/-r\

Corporate Governance Re eport
TEERRSE

BE_T_—F+_A=+—HLFE BKZ
BEEHIT I IHE:

- HHEIAWRAQABEE_ZE_ZF+_HA
T+ BALEFERHE-Z=—F~A
=THIEREAZHB®REK ZEQEMU
R@E AARGBRER HESRA
ERRERER:

- AIWKEEEBINS B R

- BREAEEZEBRERERAEZEHE-

SNEZBMEBREE THATEFTRREZERR
BEggm NEBERZBERBELLUFHR
FEMEAZHARB BERREBENCEMNARF
BE T+t _A=t+t-HULEFEZFE
XE-EFQHEELZESZRANERINSZE
B — = 30 £ 75 I

ﬁ%%éa

BRl FMEZEemmam AN AIFELE
EHUW&%#H%E ®EY RIBILIEHTT
5%

FMEES2EERERLE)RARAEHFMK
NS %M&%%&%@EﬁA;%%MHL<
i%%ﬁ?%Z#WHX%HQ(HM%L&
AEFEM MESSREESR: () B2ZBRRRE
N BZEEE R AEGEBE M & (i) $IF] EXE
AIEFERZTMBUR LR UERMEES
iﬁ&ﬂﬂ%A%%ﬁ#mﬁK%Zﬁ%lﬁﬁ

FNEL2E@MAREAKER ZRBUARTIHED
&m/ﬁﬁ’ﬁiﬂm°

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F# 33



Corporate Governance Report
AN A SR A
TXRERME

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group; and

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding the
appointment of Mr. Wang Jun as an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Mr. Liu Hongwei.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.
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The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character and
integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination

Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2021 annual general
meeting of the Company;

- Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

- Considered and recommended the appointment of Mr. Wang
Jun as an executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve
the Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.
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The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls for the year ended
31 December 2021. The annual review also covered areas on
financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification,
experiences and relevant resources. The Board considered that such
systems are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same
nature would be conducted in subsequent years.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2021 the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditors of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
is set out below:
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Remuneration

(HK$)
Nature of Services RAEME RN (BT
Audit services EEH RS 1,800,000
Non-audit services (Note) IEFFTARTE (BH5E) 138,000
TOTAL: et 1,938,000
Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included tax compliance. izt ERUZIFEARBEIZEVEAR-

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 1801-2, 18/F, Far East Finance Centre,
No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of
Investor Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders” meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders” approval.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders” meetings as follows:

(1)

40

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the
requisition may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s
bye-laws by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’” meeting.

Corporate Governance Refort
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERB®RS

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the fifth Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong and
Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with a total floor area
of 1,439 m?), from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, unless
otherwise stated. As compared to 2020, the reporting scope is the
same.

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents
covered herein are in compliance with the provision of “Comply
of Explain” as well as four reporting principles of materiality,
quantitativeness, balance and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out to
identify material environmental and social issues that have major
impacts on investors and other stakeholders, the significant
stakeholders, procedures, and results of the engagement of
which are presented in the section “Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality” in the Report.

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPI”s) have been
established, and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors used, have been disclosed
when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding choices,
omissions or presentation formats that may unduly influence
readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and presentation
of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

The Group’s Future Development and
Commitments

With rising emphases on developing sustainably, there comes with
opportunities and risks associated with the environmental and
social discourse. In face of such uncertainty, the Group will actively
adjust its development plans according to the market trends. It
hopes to better manage ESG-related risks in relation to future
business development and operate with high ethical standards.
With a long-term goal of expanding its operations, the Group will
make use of opportunities and avoid risky investments to achieve
an effective while stable business growth.

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
strategy and reporting. The sustainability plan of the Group is
developed based on results of ESG Reports and regular reports from
senior management of its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an
annual basis and adjusted as needed to align with the long-term
business strategy of the Group.

The Chairman’s Statement

For the past 2 years, businesses all over the world have been
greatly affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. We have learnt the
lesson that to withstand difficult macroeconomic situations,
sustainability is the key to success. At the same time, stakeholders
are increasingly nudging corporations to take sustainability factors
into consideration when doing businesses. As a corporate citizen,
the Group recognises this and continues to make sustainability its
operational focus. We are dedicated to improving our sustainability
performance in our operations. We understand that sustainability
governance is the foundation to a successful operation.

The Board is, therefore, responsible in setting our strategic direction,
ensuring that our ESG strategy reflects the Group’s values and core
businesses. In the future, the Board will review the progress made
against ESG-related goals to guide the Group in monitoring its ESG
performance.

To better understand the demands and expectations of our
stakeholders, we invite employees, service providers, and clients
to participate in a survey to maintain effective communication,
allowing us to better accommodate their needs.

Through embedding sustainability in our business concept, we
create greater value for both our stakeholders and society. Without
the contribution of our employees, customers, business partners
and communities, it would not have been possible for us to have
achieved so much.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Looking ahead, to tackle future challenges, we will continue
to drive our sustainability performance and further incorporate
sustainability into our core strategy. This report sets out our
sustainability practices and approaches throughout the past year.
We hope this report will provide our stakeholders an overview of
our sustainability performance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance of paying attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged MRmEHK AEBEDEFIHESSHE AR
board members, frontline employees, suppliers, and business {E& - HEFHREFBHET %ﬁ VA R
partners to gain further insights on ESG aspects they find material ZRABEENRF HERELFTENE—FR
and relevant challenges that they may induce. A materiality fFARZEF E AL ® 5| B e EBRE - WRE
assessment has then been produced according to the engagement BB IA THYE E (4 -

as follows.
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According to the assessment, the five most material topics to the
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Group are therefore,
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Risk Management

Data Protection
Anti-corruption
Prevention of Malpractice

Product/Service Quality

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ£BZREGRA A

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

Cé6

c7

D1

D2

D3

Operational
T

Supply Chain Management
HrEgEE IR
Intellectual Property

RN 38 E

Data Protection
BRHRE

Customer Service
PR
Product/Service Quality
Em/ REEE
Anti-corruption

RES

Community Investment
HERIE

Other
Hith

Risk Management
Bk & 2

Protection of Client’s rights
RIEE P RF

Prevention of Malpractice
JEPE R

1. ERER
2. ARHRE
3. RES

4. TENIER

5. Em/RBER

B LB AREREZNAAEAHE



Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group's vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable
returns to stakeholders.

Stakeholders” Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via
email at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental
A1. Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s
operations are office based and their related
environmental impact was very minimal. The Group did
not note any cases of material non-compliance relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into
water and land, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste as required by the applicable laws
and regulations.

Al.1 Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there was 1 group-
owned passenger car. It contributed to 0.07 kg
of sulphur oxides (“SOx”), 50.85 kg of nitrogen
oxides (“NOx”), and 2.36 kg of particulate matters
(“PM”) emission.

Al1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 1,246.72 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 1,471.56% increase from
last year, which is mainly due to additional paper
consumption data collected from the Group’s
Hong Kong office. The intensity was 0.67 tCO,e
per m? of total office area. See below for the detail
breakdown of GHG contribution.
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Emission Total Emission
Scope of GHG Emission Sources (in tCO,e) (in %)
P&
BERBHREE BEHUR (St mEE YR E (%)
Scope 1
gE
Direct Emissions Combustion of petrol in 13.57 1.09
group-owned vehicles
HEYR SEBRE®RTHRE
Scope 2
gE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 44.32 3.56
BEIIR R4 BE 7K BEE
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper waste disposal 1183.95 95.36
H At ) 52 BE AR BRREE
Electricity used for processing 0.06
fresh water and sewage
by third party handler
E=T RIEERIEK KR
EIKFTRE AN
Business air travels 4.82
R A ZE RTT
Total 1,246.72 100
et
Note: Emission factors were made reference to Mat: BREBHRBEIN FEREFT
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and their referred DEFBMARIABRR
documentation as set out by The Stock Exchange Alz EHRAME R
of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated otherwise. H Pt > -
Al.3. Hazardous Waste Al BEEEY
During the Reporting Period, 18.00 kg of hardware RBERN - RAERTEEEE
waste from printers and electronic equipment 418.00 T = 4T BN |2 & F &%
were generated from daily office operation. The BHEY BERERAEEE
intensity was 9.73 g of hazardous waste per m? of BYAKIOI3RBEEREEY-
total office area.
A1.4. Non-hazardous Waste Al4. BEZEREY)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
operations generated approximately 4.51 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, which mainly included
food waste and packaging, newspaper, and office
wastepaper. The intensity was 2.44 kg of non-
hazardous waste per m? of total office area.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

Al.6.

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. The main source of emission was paper
waste from daily office operations, and details of
paper-saving measures will be presented in section
A1.6. In terms of vehicles, the Group prioritises
electric cars when it has to rent one, followed by
fuel efficient ones. The Group hopes that this can
contribute to minimising the amount of emission
produced, and aims to achieve a 10% reduction in
emissions intensity in 10 years, or by 2031.

Waste Reduction and Initiatives

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group is collected
and handled by the Management Office. Paper is
used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. Paper saving
initiatives are encouraged among employees, such
as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-sided used paper. The Group tries to
recycle paper used whenever possible in attempt
to reduce waste disposed of at landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary supply
to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage. It
returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware
instead of disposable ones are used in office.
Other wastes including unneeded computers
and furniture are donated to Caritas Hong Kong
whenever possible. Through these measures,
the Group aims to achieve a 10% reduction
in hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
intensity in 10 years, or by 2031.
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A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

A2.1. Energy Consumption
A total of 152,075.91 kWh of energy was
consumed by the Group for its operations during
the Reporting Period. Electricity was the major
source of energy for the Group, consuming
106,879.00 kWh for its offices’ lighting, office
equipment, and other miscellaneous items
necessary for maintaining the offices’ daily
operations. The rest of the Group’s energy
source was petrol used for fuelling its passenger
car. 5,100 litres of petrol were used, which is
approximately equal to 45,196.91 kWh of energy.

A2.2. Water Consumption

The Shanghai office consumed 107.21 m?* of water
during the Reporting Period, the water intensity for
it was 0.12 m*m? of office area. As water usage of
the Hong Kong office was managed by the office
building, water consumption data for the Hong
Kong office was not available for the Reporting
Period.

A2.3. Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives
To reduce electricity consumption, employees
are reminded to turn off office lights, computers,
printers, and air conditioners when leaving office.
Energy efficient office equipment are also used
when possible, and older electronic equipment
are to be gradually replaced by more efficient
ones. Air conditioners are defaulted to follow
temperatures as required by relevant regulations
by authorities to reduce energy use. The Group
aims to achieve a 10% reduction in energy use
intensity in 10 years, or by 2031.
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Environmental, Social and Governance ReJ:oort

A2.4. Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. At the
Group’s office in Shanghai, there is a 5% water
reduction target within the next ten years, or by
2031. To achieve the target, flow controllers had
been installed in the office buildings” restrooms.
The office will also promote water conservation
more actively to achieve further results.

A2.5. Packaging Materials
The Group’s operations did not involve any
regular use of packaging materials. When there is
such usage once in a while, card boxes made by
recycled materials are used.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the

Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.

Climate Change

Climate change poses a huge threat to all businesses,
and that of the Group's is not an exception. The Group
recognises that extreme weather events may negatively
impact daily operations and has accordingly prepared
contingency plans for these situations. The Group has
strictly followed all environmental-related rules and
guidance from local and national authorities.
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B. Social B. #&
1. Employment and Labour Practices 1. BRREIER
B1. Employment Bl. Ef#
B1.1 Employment Figures B1.1 EIREE
The Group continues to invest in capacity REBTEHRE R AT
building among local human resource, BROBENES —HE
following local and national laws, and EEE i MBERERE MK
adopting best practices. The Group did not M EMOE - MREHA
note any cases of material non-compliance AEENEEREMER
in relation to employment during the BEIERTERBEN -
Reporting Period.
As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a BHE_ZT_—F+_-A
total of 105 employees in its Hong Kong and =t—B XAEBRHEZE
Shanghai offices. See below for the detail AR EBOBRAETHE
breakdown of the workforce. 10558 - 58 H R4
BRWMT -
Total Workforce as of 31 December 2021
BET-A=+T-BHNEBHAHK —BC-—F
By Employment Type RESELE S
Full-time 28 84.76%
Part-time TR 15.24%
By Gender gk zE-UBs)
Female 7 43.81%
Male S 56.19%
By Employee Category RESERE D
Senior Management SRERE 10.48%
Middle Management hRERE 9.52%
Frontline and Other Employees RIAR K 8 8 80.00%
By Age Group RERARNE D
18-25 18E258% 15.24%
26-35 26%E355% 51.43%
36-45 362453% 21.90%
46-55 46Z555% 8.57%
56 or above 5653 A £ 2.86%
By Geographical Location RWEBEUNER D
Mainland China RN 55.24%
Hong Kong G 44.76%
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B1.2 Turnover Figures

A total of 23 employees left the Group
during the Reporting Period, which gave
a turnover rate of 21.90%. The Group
regularly reviews salary remuneration and
benefits to retain talents and stay attractive
and competitive in the market. See below
for the detail breakdown of turnover rate by
employee group.

Turnover Rate as of 31 December

BE+T-A=+T-HHNEBE=X

By Employment Type
Full-time
Part-time

By Gender
Female
Male

By Employee Category

Senior Management

Middle Management

Frontline and Other Employees

By Age Group
18-25

26-35

36-45

46-55

56 or above

By Geographical Location
Mainland China
Hong Kong

BEREEREA S
2R
B

g ek by
ey

Bt

BREEERE S
BREERE
TREEE
A AR N EL AR B

RERARE S
182255%
26%E355
362455%
46ZE555%
5653 A _E

BB BEE D
AR A b
a8

B1.2
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BB R EUE
RFEHR - AEBHE
23X EEBHE BB X
21.90% A& & 7F HiZE 5
TEHMERF  Emik
BAEARALTRET S
FWEl A REHEFH-T
Rk EEARE D
BER K o

2021
—E”—F

25.84%
0.00%

23.91%
20.34%

18.18%
40.00%
20.24%

18.75%
31.48%
13.04%
0.00%
0.00%

23.38%
17.86%
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B1.3

B1.4

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees
are provided with attractive salary with
year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during
the year, market rate of the industry, profit
result, and the projected earning ability of
the Group. Individual salary adjustment in
respect of promotion, confirmation, transfer,
re-classification etc. are recommended by
the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain
job positions, the Group pays commission
and incentives in line with trade practices
and management policies. Various types
of leave, including annual leaves, sick
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and jury services leave, are also provided.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to
medical benefits scheme and employees’
compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.
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B1.6
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Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group regularly organises gatherings,
such as annual dinners and Christmas
parties for its employees. Due to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had not
arranged any activities for its employees
outside of workplace. Once the pandemic
has improved, the Group shall resume
activities to help create a bond and team
spirit outside of workplace and raise their
sense of belonging.
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group complies with the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases, and no
material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations was noted.

As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees” health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

COVID-19 Measures

When the coronavirus disease broke out, the
Group was highly cautious of the most up-to-date
situations as employees’ health and safety is the
Group's priority. A response team was established
to monitor the number of infection cases, follow
government guidelines, and take lead in setting
up preventive measures and arrangements for
employees, some practices include:

e Adopting work rotation, home officing, and
other distancing measures as appropriate

. Requesting for health condition and potential
virus-exposure information, and 14 days
contact history from employees and visitors
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e Strengthening health surveillance measures, o PN R BRIE AE - 200
such as, measuring body temperatures SRR

e Sourcing and providing anti-virus supplies, e KRELRHERREAM
such as surgical masks, sanitisers WANRIO S HEEE

The Group remained vigilant and released REBRFEN —BEREM

information promptly whenever any cases worthy BERINRA EREEHRE

of concern was identified. e

B2.1 Work-related fatalities and injury B2.1 ETEARMBTEE

Occupational Health and Safety Data in 2021
—EC-FHRREERZEZEBE

Work related fatality ETERERIET AR 0
Work injury cases >3 days ITHBEZR(ZFN3X) 0
Work injury cases <3 days ITHBEZR(LPRIFENRIK) 0
Lost days due to work injury AIBRETIIERE 0
Occupational Health and Safety Data “ECEFENRERER

in 2020 RERE
Work related fatality I ERRIET AR 0
Occupational Health and Safety Data TE-NAENBERER

in 2019 REHE
Work related fatality BT ERRIET AH 0
During the Reporting Period, the Company REREHR - RQ R EWEME
did not receive any complaints or lawsuits MERERERZ 2 HEBER
regarding violations of health and safety- B R LA A RIBE=F IR
related laws, and there was no work-related BERTTHAEZE-

death in the past three years.
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B3

B4.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees’ job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings
to understand market trends and increase their
competence. During the Reporting Period, 58
employees received training as arranged by the
Group, and the average training hours that each
employee received (inclusive of those who did
not receive training) was 5.52 hours. Training
provided was mostly duty-related courses or
seminars delivered by external service providers.
The trainings covered topics such as accounting
standards, laws and regulations, and anti-
corruption.

The percentage and average training hours
per gender and employee category during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

By Gender BB & 5
Female egiid

Male B

By Employee Category RESERNE S
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management RARERE
Frontline and Other Employees  Ai&R R E A& 8

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation during the Reporting
Period. All resumes, original identification cards
and relevant certificates of job candidates are
first checked by the Group during interviews.
Candidates’ preceded employers may be contacted
for provision of references.
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2. Operating Practices

B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. All
suppliers are expected to comply with all relevant
environmental and social laws, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in
their own operations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had not engaged with any long-term
key suppliers.

Product Responsibility
B6.1. Quality Assurance

It is the Group’s aim to provide products
and services that are satisfactory and provide
customer services that are professional. To
ensure that all employees are competent
with advising customers, employees are
required to prepare presentations regarding
the operations’ products regularly as a mean
for management to assess and determine
employees’ performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
not received any product or service-related
complaints. In addition, there had been no
products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons during the
Reporting Period.
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CAi&tI:
/B X5

Confidential Information

As stated in the employment contract,
employees shall not at any time, during the
course of their employment, and after the
termination of the employment:

J use any confidential information for
his/her own purpose or for any purpose
other than that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person
any confidential information except
to those of the employees or officials
of the Group whose province it is to
know the same; or

J cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including
without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business,
finance, transactions or any other
affairs to the Group or its clients or
customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence

All notes, memoranda, records and writings
made by the employees in relation to the
business or concerning any of its dealings or
affairs or the dealings or affairs of any clients
or customers of the Group shall be handed
over by him/her to the Group from time to
time on demand and in any event upon his
leaving the service of the Group and the
employees shall not retain any copy thereof.
A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal
claim for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable
laws regarding confidential information and
data protection of the laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China. No substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of client
privacy, identified leaks, thefts, or losses of
customer information was received during
the Reporting Period.
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B6.3 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights,
and complies with the relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period,
there had been no cases that violate
intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong and applicable laws in Mainland China in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All other guidelines outlined by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption
(“ICAC”) and Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”) are also followed by the Group. The
Group has a whistle-blowing policy available
for anyone to raise any concern worthy of the
Group’s awareness. To ensure that directors and
its employees familiar with relevant topics, the
Hong Kong office regularly invites ICAC to deliver
training regarding anti-corruption. There was no
concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during
the Reporting Period.

In order to enhance the anti-corruption awareness
and level of employees, during the Reporting
Period, the directors and employees of the
Company received anti-corruption training,
with an average training hour of 0.21 hours per
employee.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility. It has contributed to
activities and organisations that are beneficial to
the community. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has donated to causes relevant to culture,
health, and sports activities. More specifically,
the Group has distributed face masks during the
COVID-19 pandemic to support people in need.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 40, is an executive director, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
2 December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management
from Royal Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master
of science degree in process technology and business management
from University of Warwick. He has more than 11 years of
experience in bank and securities marketing and is familiar with
the local market and has strong capabilities in market exploration,
customer appraisal and risk management. He also has extensive
experience of regulations and rules of financial market in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain corporate financial
analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an executive director
and chief executive officer of Future World Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from 24 December
2018.

Chen Jingxian

Chen Jingxian, aged 38, has been appointed as an executive
director and vice chairman of the Board since 21 February 2022.
She is the founder of Youbeiqin Group (& # % @) and has
been the deputy general manager of Youbeigin (Shenzhen) Medical
Investment Co., Ltd. CRINIEEHEZILEBR A F) since June
2019. She has extensive experience in medical industry and
medical investment management.

Wang Jun

Wang Jun, aged 33, has been appointed as an executive director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 28 December
2021. He holds a bachelor degree of financial statistics, double
degrees of human resources management under business
administration and a master degree of industrial economy (financial
derivatives) from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
He previously worked in several well-known financial institutions
and has over 8 years of experience in investment banking, asset
management and equity investment. Mr. Wang currently is a
Director of Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited.
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Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 50, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an executive
director of Future World Holdings Limited.

Song Caini

Song Caini, aged 47, has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company since 21 February 2022. She is an investor of
Youbeiqin Group (&% & B ) and has extensive experience in
medical industry.

Chen Hongjin

Chen Hongjin, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 21 February 2022. He has been
the chairman of Yancheng Qingshang Agricultural Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (B F g R ERHEREMR 2 F]) and
Yancheng Qingshang Trading Co., Ltd.* (B BEHEEBR QA
since November 2014. He was a standing committee member of
the Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City, a member of Yancheng Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of
Yancheng Junior Chamber of Commerce* (E# M & F g ) and
vice chairman of Yancheng Lifengxiang Foundation for Education*
(ZREFBHEHEERESE) during 2009 to October 2021. Mr. Chen
has been appointed as a standing committee member of the
Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City since January 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a director of KTC Partners
CPA Limited. He has gained more than 22 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Liu Hongwei

Liu Hongwei, aged 52, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 1 October 2019. He holds a master degree in
business administration and a bachelor degree in economics from
Renmin University of China. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of
experience in finance and securities trading in China. Mr. Liu has
served as the chairman of the board of Beijing Guoxin Rongji
Holdings Co., Ltd. (Jt REBIE R EZE AR AR 2 F]) since September
2018. He also served as the managing partner of Glory Capital
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. from March 2016 to September
2018. From January 1995 to March 2016, Mr. Liu served as
the director of financial office and director of credit office at
Department of Fiscal and Financial Affairs of National Development
and Reform Commission. Mr. Liu has not held other directorships in
the last three years in any other public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZHA RS S

Moore Stephens CPA Limited ’ﬁ X
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, Eﬂi E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% E
5o
T +852 2375 3180 g =
F +85223753828 w e
/\
www.moore.hk % 'EEE'

BHESEZRBRATRRZ

BB R &
(REREZEFMH T HRAA])
=z

=

KMEEAHRE EE04B P EEE TR
BEAQ 7((2"1J)&HW§ Al ([E&EME])

ZEHAEMBHREK EPEERZE—F+=A
Sar— EIZ%?G%WH%R% BEZALFEZ
Zﬁ/\?ﬁ iR CFETERER GEEREHE
MERE imbgﬁ L/\&,ﬂ'éﬁﬁi%iﬁ%zWT B

BIZetBRME-

.
«m

B ?‘\1‘4

MRE ZREREUBHREREREETSZ:
([BEBETMAR])BH 2B BT B R
=g J(fﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ,ﬁ'ﬂ)ﬁiﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬂﬂli
ik EERZE—F+A=+—HBZEHE
Tf%ﬁﬁ/RLA&%ZIEZHJtirZ%M ,ﬁfﬁxﬁfﬁ
FigtRens WEBRBREERMEH 2 H5E
REZ BEE-

59
i

W»
\IIE

RRZER#
BHMPEREBEEESHAMASHEMIEERNE
A ([EBEFERDETEF - RAEZFE
AT EAEZEFESERNREZBAA B
Aﬁﬁﬁ%M%#ZTE* iR {3 — 2 M -
BREEESHAMASRM I EXSHMBRT
A (T=FR)) - BMBIRX EXRE XERETT
AP EMEREE-RMABGE RAMESZE
AERREERTEREE AR MANETEREHR
ﬁﬁﬁ

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F# 65



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEETEE

=S EH
RRETFAEREBERMANERHE RRYX
HGEAVBRRCBEARAEEZFH -ELE
AREHEEVBBEREBETETALAE
R2BEZTNETREN RATHELEFHEREHR
EBFER -RMAY AT -—FHERTTH20OM
BEIE Z IR TNAM BB =

B BITARE R BENL B4R A MK
AABEZEE—HPAELZEE BERGELE
EEMABZEE Rt RANESA THEREHR
TEERYEAMBRERTHERERRAR
BAEMREZRT RANEFETERERE
RIE T EEANIT 2R RBEMGRA WS HR
RERBEABRIEHER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWESFOMEEFARETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business

EFRHEEERBELZENE SR B EFIE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9.
BEBEREE S M H WS 2R 595 5 E SRR AT IE 1 [ 4
BRIBEELRBSLEESXEHREL CREE SR
FERERAEEER ([AREEBR]) -

As at 31 December 2021, gross trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, and the related
ECLs amounted to approximately HK$402,848,000 and
HK$272,732,000, respectively.

RIB -+ -_A=+—H BFLHPEEEEXEKE
EZRKRESEFREBELERBREEBRINOR
402,848,00078 7T 272,732,000/ JT °

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have checked the outstanding margin receivable
balances to the corresponding values of collateral assets
(defined as loan-to-value);

SRS ER RN RN S RS REEBRER

EoHEREEREENEREENLXR (EE/ERE
EBELX):

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group's
estimation methodology of ECLs, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral;
HERDBARIEENESRPEEEXRBEL 2B
BoEF RMACHE ESENRHAEEBERMET
% XA 2BET SN RBERIRETRE &
RIE AR RE R m RO B AR R IR -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSETNMEERERETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business (continued)

ESRPEEEREELZ ENEZRAZAET G (E)

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including estimation
of probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EHERHBEEERBEL CRREZIRAZAREERE
R R ERBELERAG RGN BRYEOH X K
HmfhE BHRARRESRE L ARREBER AR -

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEEEEBLBRE A MENGER A RN HNEF;FH

PR VB - P fE B ) TR R DA S5 B R A R
210 -

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, and its related ECLs are
included in Notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BARBMEEBEEBREEZEKRE SRR L EB@AERE
EEBEBERBHNGE M B RERME K21 -

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked
the price volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group’s assessment; and
HBROBERF2IEBENEFMAEREXRBELL
eI 5 BR300 RIFIE R E IR m e BRI IE ORI -
YEHERRSRENSIERE JAE SEENFMGE
EITHE: &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in Notes 2, 3 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
TAAIIRE 2 BIRHE TS R & AT BUR - #U B R A R IA R AR
BB mERME2 3R AHAREEBEABNER
BKEE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANENMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HMERBELZ EWREZLRFEZREFE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$517,218,000 and HK$53,204,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$47,437,000 and HK$6,160,000, respectively.
RZF-_—F+-_A=+—H EXEEREEH
EEZRBRWEREANEEE D BI#4517,218,000/8 7T &
53,204,000/ 7L > EEEC 5 ERE KK S HERED
=B BB BI#147,437,0007% 7T 56,160,000 T ©

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EREERAFEMEEERRRANEL RERERERKE
BREMRARBRANGEE (MEFEOWAIREL) B -
EEERS NECERMEBANESZAERASZER:
BEFRHEETVERARE N -ZEFHCRATEE
NEM 2 B BRI AR AT S AT o

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables
from money lending business, and their related ECLs are
included in Notes 3, 20 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
WMEXGEEZERREREMNEUKEAERREEEE
ZAARBRH NG B HREMTS - 20%24 ©

Other information included in the annual report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Group's
classification of stages based on the past due dates of the
loan and interest receivables.

BAEMEFE ERERBEKERRFSBEDH
RETHEEDENTRDE-

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
BFFEE TERRZBEREREHL  B1EE BB
an HY A R K K R a I

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, unemployment rates, etc.

BARHE ESREREROR AR EER 25N EEER
MR RARIE  BRBTEE &Y BEBFI# ML
EEE LA PIINBENEEBERRE KEXE-

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group, as
well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed by
the Group in the Notes 20 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HfcRERE BEREMRMEAERREEESE
ZEEERFAM B HRRME20M 248 ESE@
2 EE R R KE -

FHRABHMER
BARERAUEMANAE - B ENBEF
BEFRAR T BERAMBRERBMOK
BET R -

BAHGEAMBREAFLEZERE TRERM
BER BT TR EMEREREATAZE

DK 4t =A
EEEEm e
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Other information included in the annual report
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence of the Company, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: P05035

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
,%/T\ ﬁﬁn;i'\zz

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE_-F_-—F+_-A=+—HIIFZF

2021 2020

—E-—F —B_FTF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5 THEx FAT

Revenue PN

Financial investments and services 817 1%& & K k7% 43,251 74,697
Brokerage and commission income 3\%%3 PEEERON 161,670 522,691
Advisory fee income B A 38,920 72,462

5 243,841 669,850
Brokerage and commission expenses 42 & A R A& F X (157,624) (311,013)
Gross profit EF 86,217 358,837

Other income and (losses)/gains, net E AU A K (EE) =

FE 5 (5,621) 17,018

Administrative expenses THFAX (157,948) (208,293)
Equity-settled share option ARz BRELHE

arrangements 38 (11,880) -

Other operating expenses H A & @R (4,738) (6,196)

Finance costs &M 6 (32,863) (48,215)
Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains  #EiBiBzmiZ A FEIIERZ
on equity and fund investments at ~BRARESKE Z RER

fair value through profit or loss, net A& (EBE) e F5E (107,632) 42,483
Unrealised fair value losses on BRBEEEAFEIEZ

debt investments at fair value BEBRE 2 REIR

through profit or loss, net NV EBERRRE (1,219) (7,756)
Credit loss allowances on HEMmemEENEEBE

other financial assets BiE (133,775) (103,838)
Loss on revaluation of wEYMEZEMBE

investment property 15 - (10,000)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 13 - 1,345
(Loss)/profit before income tax MRAETEHAT (&E]) %A 7 (369,459) 35,385
Income tax expense FriSim X 10 (1,807) (7,627)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable &2 T #EB A B A FE

to owners of the Company (B8]) 57 (371,266) 27,758
(Loss)/earnings per share attributableZ 2 7 H A EL TR

to owners of the Company (E518) &7
Basic and Diluted HARN #E HK(2.32) cents HK0.18 cents

12 (2.32) Al 0.18711
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Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meazmEkaER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F——

FroASt—AULFE

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AABEEANELMEEE
owners of the Company (B8]) &F
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 W&

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

ERBERAEER RS

%E &2 Hth 2

BEBINE B ERE

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

TRREEBHENSEE

that will not be reclassified to BazH 2K/
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (E18)

Equity investments at fair value through FRHMEERRRAFE
other comprehensive income: SRR Z IR AR E
Changes in fair value, net of tax NFEZED BHRR

Other comprehensive income/(l0ss) RARGER ARGERFE
for the year attributable to owners of Hih2mEW " (BE)
the Company

Total comprehensive loss for the year RABEEABIERFE
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEBRASE
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2021

B —F
HK$'000
FERT

(371,266)

201,763

204,521

(166,745)

2020
TR
HK$'000
TR

27,758

6,108

(46,342)

(40,234)

(12,476)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e SRR R

As at 31 December 2021 R-F=—#F+=HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E_— —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTEx T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RFRE 14 4,198 6,682
Right-of-use assets REEE 16 10,770 36,828
Intangible assets B EE 17 500 500
Equity investments at fair value — FiREM 2 EKEE N FE
through other comprehensive FIRR Z IR AR E
income 19 493,258 344,559
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 18 110 283
Loan receivables from money WEEBEE 2 EIRER
lending business 20 353,930 363,154
Finance lease receivables B & T & e WGRIE 23 3,946 =
Deposits and other receivables e REAERFIE 24 37,032 11,775
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 903,744 763,781
Current assets REEE
Loan receivables from money MEEBESE 2 RIKER
lending business 20 115,851 153,935
Trade receivables from securities FFHNPEEEXKELEZ
and futures dealing business FEUE SR 21 130,116 306,785
Trade receivables from placing and B0 E R EE B R XK E £ 2
asset management business FEUE SR 22 45,990 43,505
Finance lease receivables Bb & T & IR 23 2,426 -
Prepayments, deposits and BENFE BE K
other receivables =l A 24 85,545 91,995
Equity and fund investments at iﬁﬁi@\ﬁﬂﬁ FEIRZ
fair value through profit or loss ~ BRARELEE 25 95,558 373,649
Debt investments at fair value FRBHEAFEIEZ
through profit or loss BEBRE 26 173,035 241,919
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITH 27 116,364 140,440
Bank balances held on behalf of REZFFFEHRITER
clients 28 159,683 436,471
Total current assets MBEERE 924,568 1,788,699
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e BRI LR

Asat 31 December 2021 R —FE——4#+—-—H=+—H

Notes
B 5

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JEHE 5 BR K 29
Lease liabilities HEARE 32
Third party interests in REMHREESZ

consolidated investment fund FE=—FER 30
Other payables and accruals Hib I RIE N B E R 31
Other borrowings HtEE 33
Bank borrowings RITEE 33
Bank overdrafts RITBX 33
Notes payable NS 34
Tax payable FE A B 78
Total current liabilities VEIN=REE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERRBAEES
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Notes payable R 34
Lease liabilities HEaE 32
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 18
Total non-current liabilities ERE B BB
Net assets FEE
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of A QB EA A B LR

the Company
Share capital P& A 35
Reserves s 36
Total equity B

Chen Xiaodong
BREE R
Director

EF
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2021
—E-—fF
HK$’000

TR

2020
—E-EF
HK$’000
FET

168,102
4,018

52,662
84,693
268,109
71,664
50,000
56

440,015
29,295

86,358
67,558
364,972
102,716
86,408

9,854

699,304

1,187,176

225,264

601,523

1,129,008

1,365,304

86,574
1,371
85

6,599

88,030

1,122,409

1,277,274

159,697
962,712

159,697
1,117,577

1,122,409

1,277,274

Yu Qingrui
REH
Director

EF
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Statement of Cash Flows

HEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZ _-FE_-—F+_H=+—HIIFZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TEx FAET
Cash flows from operating activities K& FHEECRESRE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BFrSRA (B18) %R (369,459) 35,385
Adjustments for: ST HTEE (e
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (25) (444)
Interest income on finance lease BEMEN S WA 2) =
Finance costs B ER 6 32,863 48,215
Depreciation on property, Mm% BB RREBITE
plant and equipment 7 6,347 11,669
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ {F FRE & ET & 7 19,676 30,071
Credit loss allowances on other HMEeMmEEZFE
financial assets EEEE 133,775 103,838
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B ARz W 13 1,345
Equity-settled share option PRt S 2 B L BE
arrangements, net FRE 38 =
Loss on revaluation of REMEZENEE
investment property 15 10,000
Dividend income from investment ~ EHRAZFAEEKRE 2
in listed equity securities =N ON 5 (1,971) (10,693)
Dividend income from ESREZRBEBA
fund investment 5 (5,223) =
Interest income from investment BEHEE ZHZREFBWA
in debt investments 5 (11,033) (17,002)
Unrealised fair value losses/(gains) B iBEmE A FEYRZ
on equity and fund investments BARESREZ
at fair value through profit or REH R TE
loss, net BiE (M) $5E 107,632 (42,483)
Unrealised fair value losses on BREREATEYEZ
debt investments at fair value BHIRE 2 REHR
through profit or loss, net N EEEFRE 1,219 7,756
Written off on other receivables i 85 EL b FE UK IR 7 242 =
Net loss from sub-leasing DEERAREEEEFR
right-of-use asset 5 8,806 -
Waiver on notes payable and RN RE R ER
note interest payable BN E 5 (2,158) =
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Statement of Cash Flows
HEmRERXR
For the year endled 31 December 2021 (2 —F _——F 1+ _H=—1—HILFZ

Operating profit before working EEELFHRNLE G
capital changes

Increase in loan receivables from MEEBESE 2RI
money lending business g% il

Decrease/(increase) in equity and FRBEREATEIERZ

fund investments at fair value BARESKE
through profit or loss B ()

FERBRRAFEIERZ
EBIRER D, (HFm)

Decrease/(increase) in debt
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Decrease in trade receivables

from securities and futures EUE B BRFR 4
dealing business

(Increase)/decrease in trade IREREEERBEBELEZ
receivables from placing and JEW B 5 BR K

asset management business (Em) R
Increase in prepayments, BNFIR RE MEAmREK
deposits and other receivables TRIAIE AN

Decrease/(increase) in bank balances XX EFHRITETF
held on behalf of clients B ()

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEffE SR (L)

0

Increase/(decrease) in other payables E fth J& < 518 K FEFH & A
and accruals g,/ CRA)

Decrease in third party interests REHREEEZE=F
in consolidated investment fund wmL

Cash generated from/(used in) BEME/ (FA)RS
operations

Dividend received BB E

Interest received A E

Interest paid EATHE

Tax paid EfHIA

Net cash generated from/(used in) & & EEFTT, (FTHA) 2
operating activities WeFH

80  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FES£ BB HR A A

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
TR

(67,431)

(65,500)

177,229

67,665

86,834

(18,275)
(39,754)
276,788
(271,913)
13,678

(33,696)

125,625
854
11,033
(7,764)
(11,519)

118,229

2020
= Bt ¥

HK$'000
FET

177,657

(75,129)

(213,739)

(81,145)

8,589

9,354

(5,461)

(365,119)

365,908

(2,369)

(23,241)

(204,695)
2,043
17,002

(19,023)

(39,058)

(243,731)




Statement of Cash Flows
HEmhERXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =F = —4F+=A=—+—HI-FZ

2021 2020
—2-—F —TTF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
5 FTHERT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REFEEEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BEMX BERZEEE
plant and equipment (3,680) (1,973)
Acquisition of equity investments Yoig B M H A 2 W
at fair value through other BRATEIEZBREKE
comprehensive income (45,983) (243,001)
Proceeds from disposals of equity HEBBEMEEKE
investments at fair value through BRATFEIERZ
other comprehensive income f& ARG & 2 Frig 518 358,750
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary % — & WE’D\ Az
P15 3R 13(a) 380,000
Dividend received EH&ZHX,% 8,650
Interest received 2 A A 444
Net cash generated from investing ~ REEBESE 2 RS FER
activities 502,870
Cash flows from financing activities BMEZFBHEEZRESRKE
Net proceeds from issuance of BAITHRR D PR1S SRIRH 58
new shares 74,403
Proceeds from issuance of BTN RIBEAS IR
note payable 50,000 -
Proceeds from other borrowings HEMEEEHRIA 2,582 164,073
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMEHNIA 50,632 214,241
Repayment of other borrowings EEHMEER (65,697) (228,955)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITIEE (115,432) (372,865)
Repayment of the principal portion EEHEEBELRSE S
of lease liabilities (W {13) (16,082)
Payment for interest portion of ST EMEERN S
other borrowings (15,117) (17,030)
Payment for interest portion of XHRITEENEE S
bank borrowings (2,072) (5,879)
Payment for interest portion of XNEERENSHS
lease labilities (593) (1,383)
Net cash used in financing activities BLEEENFTA IR €5 (106,899) (189,477)
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Statement of Cash Flows

BEemER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F—

—F A=+ —AILE

2021

—E-—F

Note HK$'000
iz FTERT

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes, net

RERRESEEHRBZ
3 0 73 5]
FUNZREMRITER

SNEEFE R B B 2 B F R

61,856

54,032

476

116,364

Cash and cash equivalents FARAZERERREZEER
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and ReRREESEREBERZ
cash equivalents D

Cash and bank balances B RRITHETTF

Bank overdrafts RITHEX

116,364
33 -

116,364
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2020
= Bt ¥

HK$'000
FET

69,662

(17,884)

2,254

54,032

140,440
(86,408)

54,032




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &7 _-F_-—

Corporate and group information

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company changed from Unit 6706B-08A,
Level 67, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Unit 1801-2,18/F, Far East
Finance Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, effective
from 28 December 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and
equity investments and money lending business.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

BA A5 R My AL

FrZA=1—HIFE

ArEIREBER
mEEBIERERAR ([RATF])ARA
REFMERL2BERAR -HiAMFEE
3k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° NQA a] F E &
EMBEHBEBNENTHERIRRIKES
E5671£6706B-0A E B N AR B ERE
165 R R B AO18E18012F 5=
——F+ B+ N\BEE-

ARAREBEBRAREER - ARRIRE
MBAR (TXHE [ AER]) TEHES
ALHEEEER BHEERRAKE
AR pUE 765 o

ﬁTE’RﬁZEﬂ
Ei ZAN/N TIEW% 7Zp¥| ZZDT-

Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
RAREEREZED L
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and husiness share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
M LR BRITEER/
LEER EBQEHEY ERRA B Mg IEXER
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Uss1 100 - Investment holding
(2020: 100)
Hoshing Limited* EBERHE 1% 100 - REBK
ZRITE:
100)
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Provision of administrative
(2020: 100) services
BIEEARAA B X s L0 RETHRS
100)
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
(2020: 100)
BRMBARLA BB 28T . o RAER
100)
Central Wealth Infrastructure British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 - 100 Investment in and trading of
Investment Limited Hong Kong (2020: 100) securities
PEERREARAA RERARE/ER 1% - %gw REREEES
100)
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and trading of
Hong Kong (2020: 100) securities
Desert Gold Limited RERAHE/ B 1% - = %00 RAREEES
100)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Py

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 =% ——

A=A —ALEE

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. XAREEER (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MDA R ZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
RAAEERECADL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
MR BRALER/
RAEH E3 b EMBRAE E& Mg TEXE
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money lending
(2020: 100)
BEHBAERAR A 2B - 100 HE
(Z2-%%:
100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Usst - 100 Investment holding
(2020: 100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* ERERHE [EH - - ;OO REER
100)
Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$404,000,000 = 100 Brokerage and related services
(2020: (2020: 100)
HK$325,000,000)
PEEFREAROH B 404,000,000 7C - 100 ZLERABERS
(z2-2%: (222!
325,000,000 7C) 100)
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$23,500,100 - 100 Brokerage and related services
(2020: 100)
PEIRERAH B 23,500,100 7T o Tjioo L
100)
Central Wealth Asset Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Asset Management
(2020: 100)
PEEEREARAA B 10,000,000 7T e ]ioo REER
100)
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$62,500 100 - Investment holding
(2020: US$§46,500) (2020: 100)
WEBRAE" ABRLES 62 SO0XTT 100 - RABR
(ZF=F%F:  (ZF2%F:
46,500% 7T ) 100)
Fortune China Bond SP II Cayman Islands US$12,626,453¢ - 5545 Investment in and trading of debt
(2020: (2020: 40.64) instruments
US$17,336,344%)
Fortune China Bond SP Il REHS 12,626 453X 70! - 5545 BEIARAREE
(-2-2%: (Z22%2F:
17,336,344 7T°) 40.64)
Greater China Income Fund Cayman Islands US$4,912,974 = 100 Investment in and trading of debt
(2020: (2020: 100) instruments
US$5,817,500°)
Greater China Income Fund HEHS 4,912 974%7@ - 100 EEIAREALEE
(z2-2%: (Z2-%F:
5,817,500%7T°) 100)
Central Wealth Cornerstone (Shanghai) The People’s Republic of RMBY95,154,923 - 100 Advisory service in debt capital
Consulting Co Ltd* China (the “PRC") (2020: (2020: 100) market and investment in the
RMB80,047,924) fund
TEAR (LB EXEARRAF" PEARANE ([HE])  AKE95,1549237 - 100 EHEATEERRLR
(Z32%F: (ZF2%%: EERE
AR¥80,047,92470) 100)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Corporate and group information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
* Not audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited or another
member firm of the Moore Global Network Limited

? The shares represented participating shares

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the equity, fund and debt investments and
investment property which have been measured at fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional currency of the
Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

1.

NAEIREBER (@2

HEBARZEE (&)

e REREGEHESAMEBSTAR QA
REFZRPIEEMKE R R EX

‘ f% 15 #5 2 ER 15

ERINEARBAETRRY A FEAREE
XEATEREIBRAKREEEFEE
BROZARFMBRAR - ARAEER
REEMHBARZEMIILESRIER
RITEK

MRBREREER ETREG
BUR
WEGARBRRDVERELGHTAE
((BBEHTAG])EH EBYBRS
A ([BBUBREEA]) (DHEAEE
EUMBREEA BEE RN ((FRE
BEA) RRE)  EBARGHFRE
ERAGHZ REREMRE L ERE
MBRRTETEERARSHERDA
BHEDRA(TEHRA)) 288 HE G
X o

HERAMBRRIBREELKNALHER
HEERAFEFEZ#DS EEREHR
BURBREMERIN - I EHAPHHEER
UARB 2z ¥ BT ([Bx])IR:
BRBEREBIN MEREANBERED
FhL o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
IR M5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F = —4%+_-H=+—HI-F/F

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@

(b)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has applied, for the first time, the following new
and revised standards issued by the HKICPA.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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2. MEBREREERTESS
BUER (@)

(@)

(b)

R REEITERBYBEHRSE
2= A
REBE_T_—Ft+_-_A=t+—H
LFEEAMBBERR ARECE
RERATHEESTRI RS EMZ
#a] MAIERT 2R -

BRI B RS &R Covid-19437
F165H .25 HeRe

BEMERE LR B FIREERE
BAEGERIFE395 FEER

BEMBMEERE7R
BRI MELERFAR L
BEMBEREERE 165 2 EF]

Fﬁﬁf&%%ﬂ&WWHE%%W
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

88

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2—F = —%+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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90

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

(d

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate is
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is
included as part of the Group’s investment in associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being the difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate and the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
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2.

92

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements
terms or 3 years,
whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture,

fixtures and equipment

3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

®

(®

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment property is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

94

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets deferred tax assets and
investment property), the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-
generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income,
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equily investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

BE—FE——F+—A=1+—HIFZE

MEBRREREERTES T
BUR (&)

@

REREMEREE (&)

FETE # BB R M £ [E] W a5 12 2 F 1S
RZeBEE (RERE) (B)
ZETBMEEN RS REBEEET SR
BNt AGEERRR BRI
E2L B AR B8 ) A 78 ) 2 TR AT BE R AR
SE ARENSHEEH A ST ER -
BRENGABERERTEIRR/EA IE
EAEERNERKOEREE—HD
P AN B BT 15 380 38 AP 2 a5 B R BR S 10
EFEBRT - % F Was 0 E 2 W
sAR-EEEAEMEERERA
FEIIRNRAREBAETRERN
flre

FBRERm RN FEIES T BEE

BRBREATEIENEREER
EREFEENSREE RYHKER
FiEEEBRRE A FEIIRNEE
BE B ERRAFEFENSE
BB - fin AR T B B S Uk
BEREE MZTEREEIER
FIEEE - TAETA(BEBIHRA
AMTETR) RO BEARKIEEE
ZEMETAREERERE R TA
AR -RERELFEFINAE
EHNENEREE TwEEBKERX
el A BB aR A FEIED
BRAE-BENEXAAEBIA
QkiS: 3N R e
DFEIIRD E - BRY)AERE
i BE 50 H BR Sk B R D & 5T #5 AC - B
BB TAMEEREBREEATE
58k -

BRBREATEIIRNEREER
RFERGEVBRRARIIE M A
FEZHFENGABERTHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 38 97



Notes to the Financial Statements
Sl R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2.

98

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 2 =

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
IR M5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F = —4%+_-H=+—HI-F/F

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, third party interests
in consolidated investment fund, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2—F = —%+_-H=+—HI-F/E

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Sl R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
IR M5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F = —4%+_-H=+—HI-F/F

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
() Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

J the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2—F = —%+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the
respective leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Sub-lease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head
lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with
the sub-lease) to measure the net investment in the sub-
lease if the interest rate implicit in the sub-lease cannot
be readily determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Py

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)
(m) Cash and bank balances

(n)

(0)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients’” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients” monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Py

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2—F = —%+_-H=+—HI-F/E
Basis of preparation of financial statements 2. MBBREUEERTESH
and principal accounting policies (continued) B ()
(p) Income tax (continued) (p) FrEHi (&)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset fisd 3k R 5 PR T8 B 4% A~ 3k I (B K BB IR 3T
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right MEBEHREENSRKBME &
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and [ AT 40 % 5% i R 1T 4 4K 8 B AR R
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate ISR B R R A A BN AP
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on MBEEREENRKEREE NS
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities NEENHERERRNE B L TFER
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and MERBBKFEHEENAIIATIEER
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle ERBAHREGENRELEREBEEE
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in MEREHRBERE KA HELEREER
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or ENMEERBRELHE-
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
(@) Revenue recognition (@ WARER
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&AHA

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
IR M5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F = —4%+_-H=+—HI-F/F

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Commission income from securities and futures dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities and
futures dealing and broking is generally due within two
days after trade date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consume the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Management fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month on
the net asset value of the fund managed by Group. The
management fee income is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
net asset value of the fund is confirmed at each month
end.

Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of the
relevant performance period. Similar to the management
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.

Revenue from other sources
Property rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Py

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2—F = —%+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(r

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Py

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 —F - —&F+ - H=+—HI-FZ
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the lower of 5% of the
employees’ relevant income or HK$1,500 each month.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a prescribed percentage of their
payroll costs, subject to certain ceilings imposed, to
the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The applicable percentages
for the central pension scheme for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are listed below:
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —F_——F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()]

®

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

2.

ERRFEREER TER5
BUR (&)

()]

Pension insurance BZRE
Medical insurance ERRR
Maternity insurance E=ERR
Unemployment insurance KERR

Work-related injury insurance TSR

Housing provident fund EEAER

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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14.00% — 14.00% —
16.00% 16.00%
5.2% — 5.2% —
10.50% 9.50%
0.45% — 0.45% —
1.00% 1.00%
0.50% — 0.50% —
0.70% 0.70%
0.16% — 0.16% —
1.52% 1.52%
5.00% — 5.00% —
7.00% 7.00%
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